
STERLING CHEMICALS INC
Form 10-Q
May 12, 2010

Edgar Filing: STERLING CHEMICALS INC - Form 10-Q

1



Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

þ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2010
OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                     
Commission File Number 000-50132

Sterling Chemicals, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 76-0502785
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer Identification No.)
Incorporation or organization)

333 Clay Street, Suite 3600 (713) 650-3700
Houston, Texas 77002-4109 (Registrant�s telephone number,

(Address of principal executive offices) including area code)
     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes þ No o.
     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes
o No o.
     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated
filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� �non-accelerated
filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer o Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting
company þ

(Do not check if a smaller
reporting company)

     Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes o No þ.
     As of April 30, 2010, Sterling Chemicals, Inc. had 2,828,460 shares of common stock outstanding.
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING THIS FORM 10-Q
     Unless otherwise indicated, references to �we,� �us,� �our� and �ours� in this Form 10-Q refer collectively to Sterling
Chemicals, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Readers should consider the following information as they review this Form 10-Q:
Forward-Looking Statements
     This report contains �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
or the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements give our current expectations or forecasts of future events. All
statements other than statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements include, without limitation, any statement that may project, indicate or imply future
results, events, performance or achievements, and may contain or be identified by the words �expect,� �intend,� �plan,�
�predict,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� �believe,� �should,� �could,� �may,� �might,� �will,� �will be,� �will continue,� �will likely result,� �project,�
�forecast,� �budget� and similar expressions. Statements in this report that contain forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to, information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations. While our
management considers these expectations and assumptions to be reasonable, they are inherently subject to significant
business, economic, competitive, regulatory and other risks, contingencies and uncertainties, most of which are
difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control.
     Other sections of this Form 10-Q and our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC,
including, without limitation, our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, or our
Annual Report, include additional factors that could adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial
performance. See �Risk Factors� contained in Item 1A of Part I of our Annual Report. Given these risks and
uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
included in this Form 10-Q are made only as of the date of this Form 10-Q and are not guarantees of future
performance. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable,
such expectations may prove to be incorrect. All written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to us, or
persons acting on our behalf, are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements.
Document Summaries
     Descriptions of documents and agreements contained in this Form 10-Q are provided in summary form only, and
such summaries are qualified in their entirety by reference to the actual documents and agreements filed as exhibits to
our Annual Report, other periodic reports we file with the SEC or this Form 10-Q.
Access to Filings
     Access to our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports, filed with or furnished to the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, as
well as reports filed electronically pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, may be obtained through our
website (http://www.sterlingchemicals.com), at no cost, as soon as reasonably practicable after we have electronically
filed such material with the SEC. The contents of our website (or the third-party websites accessible through the
various hyperlinks) are not, and shall not be deemed to be, incorporated into this Form 10-Q.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Sterling Chemicals, Inc.:
     We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of Sterling Chemicals, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of March 31, 2010, and the related condensed consolidated statements of operations
and cash flows for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. These interim financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company�s management.
     We conducted our reviews in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures to
financial data and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken
as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
     Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
condensed consolidated financial statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
     We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the balance sheet of the Company as of December 31, 2009, and the related statements of income,
stockholders� equity and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and in our report dated March 24,
2010, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information
set forth in the accompanying condensed balance sheet as of December 31, 2009, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the balance sheet from which it has been derived.
/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
Houston, Texas
May 12, 2010
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PART I.
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements
STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Share Data)

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
Revenues $ 33,109 $ 31,377
Cost of goods sold 27,910 25,809

Gross profit 5,199 5,568
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,894 3,883
Impairment of long-lived assets 290 �
Interest and debt related expenses 3,607 4,003
Interest income (49) (384)
Other income (76) (1,145)

Loss from continuing operations before income tax (1,467) (789)
Benefit for income taxes � (195)

Loss from continuing operations $ (1,467) $ (594)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax expense of zero and $869,
respectively 2,979 1,622

Net income $ 1,512 $ 1,028
Preferred stock dividends 4,455 4,147

Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (2,943) $ (3,119)

(Loss) income per share of common stock attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing operations $ (2.09) $ (1.67)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax 1.05 0.57

Basic and diluted loss per share $ (1.04) $ (1.10)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted 2,828,460 2,828,460

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
4
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
(Dollars in Thousands)

March 31,
December

31,
2010 2009

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 121,188 $ 123,778
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $58 and $58, respectively 13,779 14,614
Inventories, net 5,229 5,268
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,685 2,539
Assets of discontinued operations � 24

Total current assets 141,881 146,223

Property, plant and equipment, net 65,585 68,182
Other assets, net 5,311 5,760

Total assets $ 212,777 $ 220,165

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 8,503 $ 11,703
Accrued liabilities 23,479 24,416
Liabilities of discontinued operations 12,383 12,384

Total current liabilities 44,365 48,503

Long-term debt 123,000 125,000
Long-term liabilities 41,553 41,084
Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations 19,915 23,010
Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)
Redeemable preferred stock 138,983 134,528
Stockholders� deficiency in assets:
Common stock, $.01 par value (shares authorized 100,000,000; shares issued
and outstanding 2,828,460) 28 28
Additional paid-in capital 102,517 106,948
Accumulated deficit (239,268) (240,780)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (18,316) (18,156)

Total stockholders� deficiency in assets (155,039) (151,960)

Total liabilities and stockholders� deficiency in assets $ 212,777 $ 220,165
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(Dollars in Thousands)

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 1,512 $ 1,028
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by
operating activities:
Stock compensation expense 24 96
Bad debt expense 21 �
Benefit plan curtailment gain (115) �
Depreciation and amortization 3,041 2,245
Interest amortization 432 277
Unearned income amortization (4,280) (3,637)
Impairment of long-lived assets 290 �
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (15) (83)
Gain on purchase of Senior Secured Notes (6) �
Other 13 �
Change in assets/liabilities:
Accounts and other receivables 838 5,406
Inventories (21) (189)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 854 687
Other assets (52) (119)
Accounts payable (3,310) 1,240
Accrued liabilities (938) 1,799
Long-term liabilities 1,609 548

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (103) $ 9,298

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Capital expenditures for property, plant and equipment (577) (2,442)
Net proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 15 83

Net cash used in investing activities (562) (2,359)

Cash flows used in financing activities:
Purchase of Senior Secured Notes (1,925) �

Net cash used in financing activities (1,925) �

Net (decrease) increase in cash (2,590) 6,939
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Cash and cash equivalents � beginning of year 123,778 156,126

Cash and cash equivalents � end of period $ 121,188 $ 163,065

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 129 $ 70
Interest income received 49 384
Cash paid for income taxes (598) �

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
1. Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policies
     The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, or GAAP, and reflect all adjustments
(including normal recurring accruals) which, in our opinion, are considered necessary for the fair presentation of the
results for the periods presented. The results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for the full year. These statements should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report.
Property Plant and Equipment Impairment
     In accordance with our policies, an impairment charge of $0.3 million was recorded to reduce the carrying value of
a turbo generator unit classified as a spare, to its net realizable value of $0.4 million.
2. Discontinued Operations
     On September 17, 2007, we entered into a long-term exclusive styrene supply agreement and a related railcar
purchase and sale agreement with NOVA Chemicals Inc., or NOVA. Under this supply agreement, NOVA had the
exclusive right to purchase 100% of our styrene production (subject to existing contractual commitments), the amount
of styrene supplied in any particular period being at NOVA�s option. In November 2007, this supply agreement, which
was subsequently assigned by NOVA to INEOS NOVA, LLC, or INEOS NOVA, received clearance under the
Hart-Scott-Rodino Act. This clearance caused the supply agreement and the railcar agreement to become effective and
triggered a $60.0 million payment to us from INEOS NOVA. In accordance with the terms of the supply agreement,
INEOS NOVA assumed substantially all of our contractual obligations for future styrene deliveries. After the supply
agreement became effective, INEOS NOVA nominated zero pounds of styrene under the supply agreement for the
balance of 2007 and, in response, we exercised our right to terminate the supply agreement and permanently shut
down our styrene facility. Under the supply agreement, we were responsible for the closure costs of our styrene
facility and are also restricted from reentering the styrene business for a period of time. The restricted period of time
was initially through 2015, however, effective April 1, 2008, INEOS NOVA unilaterally reduced the restricted period
to five years ending November 2012.
     As a result of our styrene facility being permanently shut down, we have no significant continued involvement in
the styrene business and have, therefore, reported the operating results of this business as discontinued operations in
our condensed consolidated financial statements. The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities related to discontinued
operations as of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 were as follows:

March
31,

December
31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets of discontinued operations:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $44 and $23 respectively $ � $ 24

Liabilities of discontinued operations:(1)
Accrued liabilities $ 12,383 $ 12,384
Deferred credits and other liabilities 19,915 23,010

Total $ 32,298 $ 35,394

(1) As of March 31,
2010, represents

Edgar Filing: STERLING CHEMICALS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 11



deferred income
from the NOVA
supply
agreement that
is being
amortized over
the contractual
non-compete
period of five
years using the
straight-line
method.
Accrued
liabilities
represents the
current portion
of
$12.4 million,
and deferred
credits and other
liabilities
represents the
long-term
portion of the
deferred income
of
$19.9 million.

     Revenues and income before income taxes from discontinued operations for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009 are presented below:
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Revenues $ 3,096 $ 3,096
Income before income taxes 2,979 2,491
3. Long-Term Debt
     On March 29, 2007, we completed a private offering of $150.0 million aggregate principal amount of unregistered
101/4% Senior Secured Notes due 2015, or our Secured Notes pursuant to a Purchase Agreement among us, Sterling
Chemicals Energy, Inc., or Sterling Energy, one of our former wholly-owned subsidiaries, and Jefferies & Company,
Inc. and CIBC World Markets Corp., as initial purchasers. In connection with that offering, we entered into an
indenture dated March 29, 2007 among us, Sterling Energy, as guarantor, and U. S. Bank National Association, as
trustee and collateral agent. On May 6, 2008, Sterling Energy was merged with and into us. Upon consummation of
the merger, Sterling Energy no longer had independent existence and, consequently, our Secured Notes are no longer
guaranteed by Sterling Energy.
     Our indenture contains affirmative and negative covenants and customary events of default, including payment
defaults, breaches of covenants and certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency and reorganization. If an event of default
occurs and is continuing, other than an event of default triggered upon certain bankruptcy events, the trustee under our
indenture or the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of our outstanding Secured Notes may declare our
Secured Notes to be due and payable immediately. Upon an event of default, the trustee may also take actions to
foreclose on the collateral securing our outstanding Secured Notes. Our indenture does not require us to maintain any
financial ratios or satisfy any financial maintenance tests. We are currently in compliance with all of the covenants
contained in our indenture.
     Interest is due on our outstanding Secured Notes on April 1 and October 1 of each year. Our outstanding Secured
Notes, which mature on April 1, 2015, are senior secured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of
our existing and future senior indebtedness. Subject to specified permitted liens, our outstanding Secured Notes are
secured (i) on a first priority basis by all of our fixed assets and certain related assets, including, without limitation, all
of our property, plant and equipment and (ii) on a second priority basis by our other assets, including, without
limitation, accounts receivable, inventory, capital stock of our domestic restricted subsidiaries, intellectual property,
deposit accounts and investment property.
     In the fourth quarter of 2009, we purchased $25.0 million in aggregate principal amount of our Secured Notes in
the open market for $23.8 million in cash, resulting in a $1.2 million gain. This gain was partially offset by the
amortization of a pro rata portion of the related debt issue costs of $0.9 million. In February 2010, we purchased an
additional $2.0 million in aggregate principal amount of our Secured Notes in the open market for $1.9 million in
cash, resulting in a $0.1 million gain. This gain was partially offset by the amortization of a pro rata portion of the
related debt issue costs of less than $0.1 million.
     On December 19, 2002, we entered into a Revolving Credit Agreement, or our revolving credit facility, with The
CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc, or CIT, as administrative agent and a lender, and certain other lenders. Under our
revolving credit facility, we and Sterling Energy were co-borrowers and were jointly and severally liable for any
indebtedness thereunder. After the merger of Sterling Energy with and into us, Sterling Energy ceased to be a
co-borrower under our revolving credit facility. On December 10, 2009, we elected to terminate our revolving credit
facility effective January 24, 2010 due to our substantial cash reserves and low working capital needs. There were no
penalties or termination fees payable by us in connection with the early termination of our revolving credit facility.
The remaining associated debt issue costs of $0.2 million were written off as of the effective termination date.

8
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

     On January 31, 2010, we entered into a $5.0 million Revolving Line of Credit for letters of credit, or our LC
Facility, with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., or Chase, for the issuance of commercial and standby letters of credit. Our
LC Facility has an initial term of one year. Under our LC Facility, we pay Chase a fee of 1% per annum of the face
amount of each outstanding letter of credit and an issuance fee of $500 for each letter of credit. Our LC Facility is
secured by $5.0 million in cash under an Assignment of Deposit Account Agreement between us and Chase. As of
March 31, 2010, there were $3.3 million in standby letters of credit issued under our LC facility.
Debt Maturities
     Our Secured Notes, which had an aggregate principal balance of $123.0 million outstanding as of March 31, 2010,
are due on April 1, 2015.
4. Commitments and Contingencies
Product Contracts:
     We have long-term agreements which provide for the dedication of 100% of our production of acetic acid and
plasticizers, each to one customer. See Note 7 for more information regarding our acetic acid and plasticizers
segments.
Legal Proceedings:
     On July 5, 2005, Patrick B. McCarthy, an employee of Kinder-Morgan, Inc., or Kinder-Morgan, was seriously
injured at Kinder-Morgan�s facilities near Cincinnati, Ohio, while attempting to offload a railcar containing one of our
plasticizers products. On October 28, 2005, Mr. McCarthy and his family filed a suit in the Court of Common Pleas,
Hamilton County, Ohio (Case No. A0509 144) against us and six other defendants. During the case, five of the other
defendants were dismissed. The plaintiffs sought in excess of $42 million in alleged compensatory and punitive
damages from the defendants in the aggregate. On May 7, 2009, the jury found that we had not been negligent in
connection with the incident and rendered a take nothing verdict in favor of the defendants. On June 24, 2009, the
plaintiffs filed a motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict or, in the alternative, a new trial. On September 4,
2009, the Court denied plaintiffs� motion for judgment notwithstanding the verdict but granted plaintiffs� motion for a
new trial. We and the other remaining defendant timely filed notices of appeal of that order, as well as other orders
issued during the trial. We believe that all, or substantially all, of any liability imposed upon us as a result of this suit
and our related out-of-pocket costs and expenses will be covered by our insurance policies, subject to a one million
deductible, which was met in January 2008. We do not believe that this incident will have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, although we cannot guarantee that a material
adverse effect will not occur.
     On February 21, 2007, we, several of our benefit plans and the plan administrators for those plans were sued in a
class action suit, Case No. H-07-0625 filed in the United States District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston
Division. The plaintiffs represent a class of retired employees of Sterling Fibers, Inc., one of our former subsidiaries
that we sold in connection with our emergence from bankruptcy in 2002. The plaintiffs allege that we were not
permitted to increase their premiums for retiree medical insurance based on a provision contained in an asset purchase
agreement between us, Sterling Fibers, Inc. and Cytec Industries Inc. and certain of its affiliates governing our
purchase of our former acrylic fibers business in 1997. During our bankruptcy case, we specifically rejected this asset
purchase agreement and the bankruptcy court approved that rejection. The plaintiffs are claiming that we violated the
terms of the benefit plans and breached fiduciary duties governed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
and are seeking damages, declaratory relief, punitive damages and attorneys� fees. A trial for this matter was held
during the second week of November 2009, but the court has not yet issued a ruling. We are vigorously defending this
action and are unable to state at this time if a loss is probable or remote and are unable to determine the possible range
of loss related to this matter, if any.
     We are subject to various other claims and legal actions that arise in the ordinary course of our business. We do not
believe that any of these claims and actions, separately or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, although we cannot guarantee that a material adverse
effect will not occur.
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

     As of December 31, 2009, we had a receivable of $0.1 million due from our insurance carriers for reimbursement
of legal costs that exceeded our insurance deductibles and were, therefore, reimbursable through our insurance
carriers. For the three months ended March 31, 2010, we incurred $0.1 million of legal costs that are reimbursable
under our insurance policies and received $0.1 million of payments from our insurance carriers, resulting in a
receivable balance of $0.1 million as of March 31, 2010.
5. Income Taxes
     During the first quarters of 2010 and 2009, we recorded a net tax benefit of zero and $0.2 million, respectively, for
income taxes from continuing operations. For the first quarter of 2009, the tax benefit from continuing operations was
generated by utilizing income in discontinued operations to recognize a portion of the benefit from losses generated in
continuing operations. Our continuing operations effective tax rate for the three-month period ended March 31, 2010
was zero. For the three-month period ended March 31, 2009 our effective tax rate was 24.8%.
6. Employee Benefits
     Net periodic pension costs consisted of the following components:

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Interest cost $ 1,745 $ 1,828
Expected return on plan assets (1,160) (1,513)
Amortization 191 864

Net pension cost $ 776 $ 1,179

     Other postretirement benefits consisted of the following components:

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Service cost $ 10 $ 11
Interest cost 95 121
Amortization of unrecognized costs (544) (541)
Curtailment gain (115) �

Net plan benefit $ (554) $ (409)

     During the first quarter of 2010, we announced and completed a reduction in our work force. In accordance with
Accounting Standards Codification, or ASC, Topic 715 �Compensation � Retirement Benefits,� we recorded a
curtailment gain of $0.1 million under our retiree medical plans.
7. Operating Segment and Sales Information
     As of March 31, 2010, after considering the effects of discontinued operations, we have reported our operations
through two segments: acetic acid and plasticizers. The accounting policies are the same as those disclosed in our
Annual Report. We use gross profit for reporting the results of our operating segments and this measure includes all
operating items related to the businesses. There are no sales between segments. The revenues and gross profit
(losses) for each of our reportable operating segments are as follows:

10
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

Three months ended March
31,

2010 2009
(Dollars in Thousands)

Revenues:
Acetic acid $ 26,427 $ 23,838
Plasticizers 6,427 7,284
Other 255 255

Total $ 33,109 $ 31,377

Segment gross profit (loss):
Acetic acid $ 3,683 $ 4,574
Plasticizers 1,545 1,323
Other (29) (329)

Total 5,199 5,568

Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,894 3,883
Impairment of long-lived assets 290 �
Interest and debt related expenses 3,607 4,003
Interest income (49) (384)
Other income (76) (1,145)

Loss from continuing operations before income tax $ (1,467) $ (789)

Depreciation and amortization expenses:
Acetic acid $ 1,962 $ 1,643
Plasticizers 795 312
Other(1) 284 290

Total $ 3,041 $ 2,245

Capital expenditures:
Acetic acid $ 134 $ 1,455
Other � plant infrastructure 443 987

Total $ 577 $ 2,442

(1) Includes
depreciation and
amortization
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expenses for
discontinued
operations of
less than
$0.1 million for
each of the
three-month
periods ended
March 31, 2010
and 2009,
respectively.

As of As of
March
31, 2010

December 31,
2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
Total assets:
Acetic acid $ 36,500 $ 35,362
Plasticizers 4,741 5,412
Other(1) 171,536 179,391

Total $ 212,777 $ 220,165

(1) Components of
Other are
presented in the
table below:
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STERLING CHEMICALS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

As of As of
March
31, 2010

December 31,
2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
Other:
Corporate:
Cash $ 121,188 $ 123,778
Other 13,078 17,677
Plant infrastructure:
Property, plant and equipment, net 37,270 37,912
Assets of discontinued operations � 24

Total $ 171,536 $ 179,391

8. Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
     In accordance with the provisions of the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the ASC, the fair
value of our financial instruments has been estimated in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
or GAAP. The fair value of our fixed rate long-term debt is estimated based on quoted market prices or prices quoted
from third-party financial institutions. The carrying and fair values of our long-term debt are as follows:

As of March 31, 2010 As of December 31, 2009
Carrying
Value Fair Value

Carrying
Value Fair Value

Secured Notes $ 123,000 $ 121,770 $ 125,000 $ 119,400
The fair values of our cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade > 8  655 

Debt and other issuance costs

 (1,304)  � 

Net change in credit facilities

 (2,818)  (1,851)

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

 125,000  � 

Repayment of long-term debt, net

 (731)  (65,947)          122,276  (63,268)

Effect of Foreign Exchange Rates on Cash

 594  (667)         
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Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

 (45,239)  (37,443)

Cash and Cash Equivalents � Beginning of Period

 160,645  147,069          

Cash and Cash Equivalents � End of Period

$    115,406 $    109,626          

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash Paid for Interest

$13,153 $15,543 

Cash Paid for Taxes

 27,657  20,372 
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ESTERLINE TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Three and Six Month Periods Ended May 1, 2009 and May 2, 2008

1. The consolidated balance sheet as of May 1, 2009, the consolidated statement of operations for the three and six
month periods ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008, and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the six
month periods ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008, are unaudited but, in the opinion of management, all of the
necessary adjustments, consisting of normal recurring accruals, have been made to present fairly the financial
statements referred to above in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, the above
statements do not include all of the footnotes required for complete financial statements. The results of operations
and cash flows for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of results that can be expected for
the full year.

2. The notes to the consolidated financial statements in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended October 31, 2008, provide a summary of significant accounting policies and additional financial
information that should be read in conjunction with this Form 10-Q.

3. The timing of the Company�s revenues is impacted by the purchasing patterns of customers and, as a result,
revenues are not generated evenly throughout the year. Moreover, the Company�s first fiscal quarter, November
through January, includes significant holiday periods in both Europe and North America. The first six months of
fiscal 2009 contained 26 weeks, while the first six months of fiscal 2008 contained 27 weeks.

4. Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted earnings per share includes the dilutive effect of stock options. Common shares issuable from stock
options that are excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because they were anti-dilutive were
1,544,020 and 426,920 in the second fiscal quarters of 2009 and 2008, respectively. Shares used for calculating
earnings per share are disclosed in the following table.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Shares Used for Basic
    Earnings Per Share 29,705 29,442 29,684 29,413
Shares Used for Diluted
    Earnings Per Share 29,829 29,882 29,847 29,846

9
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5. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
On December 4, 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 141(R),
�Business Combinations,� (Statement No. 141(R)) and Statement No. 160, �Accounting and Reporting of
Non-controlling Interest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51,� (Statement No. 160).
These new standards will significantly change the accounting for and reporting of business combination transactions
and non-controlling (minority) interests in consolidated financial statements. Statement No. 141(R) and Statement
No. 160 are required to be adopted simultaneously and are effective for fiscal 2010.

The significant changes in the accounting for business combination transactions under Statement No.
141(R) include the following:

� Recognize, with certain exceptions, 100% of the fair values of assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and
non-controlling interests of acquired businesses.

� Measure all acquirer shares issued in consideration for a business combination at fair value on the
acquisition date. With the effectiveness of Statement No. 141(R), the �agreement and announcement date�
measurement principles in EITF Issue 99-12 will be nullified.

� Recognize contingent consideration arrangements at their acquisition-date fair values, with subsequent
changes in fair value generally reflected in earnings.

� With the one exception described in the last sentence of this section, recognize pre-acquisition gain and
loss contingencies at their acquisition-date fair values. Subsequent accounting for pre-acquisition loss
contingencies is based on the greater of acquisition-date fair value or the amount calculated pursuant to
FASB Statement No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� (Statement No. 5). Subsequent accounting for
pre-acquisition gain contingencies is based on the lesser of acquisition-date fair value or the best estimate
of the future settlement amount. Adjustments after the acquisition date are made only upon the receipt of
new information on the possible outcome of the contingency, and changes to the measurement of
pre-acquisition contingencies are recognized in ongoing results of operations. Absent new information,
no adjustments to the acquisition-date fair value are made until the contingency is resolved.
Pre-acquisition contingencies that are both (1) non-contractual and (2) as of the acquisition date are �not
more likely than not� of materializing are not recognized in acquisition accounting and, instead, are
accounted for based on the guidance in Statement No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies.�

� Capitalize in-process research and development (IPR&D) assets acquired at acquisition date fair value.
After acquisition, apply the indefinite-lived impairment model (lower of basis or fair value) through the
development period to capitalized IPR&D without amortization. Charge development costs incurred after
acquisition to

10
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results of operations. Upon completion of a successful development project, assign an estimated useful
life to the amount then capitalized, amortize over that life, and consider the asset a definite-lived asset for
impairment accounting purposes.

� Recognize acquisition-related transaction costs as an expense when incurred.

� Recognize acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals in acquisition accounting only if the criteria in
Statement No. 146 are met as of the acquisition date. With the effectiveness of Statement No. 141(R), the
EITF Issue 95-3 concepts of �assessing, formulating, finalizing and committing/communicating� that
currently pertain to recognition in purchase accounting of an acquisition-related restructuring plan will be
nullified.

� Recognize changes in the acquirer�s income tax valuation allowance resulting from the business
combination separately from the business combination as adjustments to income tax expense. Also,
changes after the acquisition date in an acquired entity�s valuation allowance or tax uncertainty
established at the acquisition date are accounted for as adjustments to income tax expense.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of Statement No. 141(R) and Statement No. 160 on the Company�s
financial statements.

6. The Company performs the annual impairment test of goodwill as of the first day of the fiscal fourth quarter. For
fiscal 2008 the annual impairment test was conducted as of August 2, 2008, and it was determined that no
impairment existed as of that date. The Company is also required to test goodwill for impairment between annual
tests if events occur or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the enterprise fair value
below the book value. During the second quarter of 2009, the Company experienced a significant decline in its
stock price. Because of the decline in the stock price and other contributing factors, management concluded that
sufficient indicators existed to require an interim assessment of goodwill as of May 1, 2009.

The Company measured the fair value of each of the reporting units using accepted valuation techniques. The
valuation of reporting units requires judgment in estimating future cash flows, discount rates and estimated product
life cycles. In making these judgments the Company evaluates the financial health of the business, including such
factors as industry performance, changes in technology and operating cash flows. To validate the reasonableness of
the reporting unit fair values, the Company reconciled the aggregate fair value of the reporting units to the enterprise
market capitalization. Enterprise market capitalization includes, among other factors, the fully diluted market
capitalization of the stock, an acquisition premium based on historical data from acquisitions within the same or
similar industries and the appropriate value of the Company�s debt. In performing the reconciliation the Company may,
depending on the volatility of the market value of the stock price, use either the stock price on the valuation date or the
average stock price over a range of dates around that date. The Company considers quantitative and qualitative factors
that are
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considered relevant, which may change depending on the date for which the assessment is made. This assessment
resulted in no impairment of goodwill as of May 1, 2009.

Management will continue to monitor goodwill for possible future impairment. Management cannot assure that
goodwill will not be impaired in future periods. The Company has accumulated $690.5 million of goodwill as of
May 1, 2009.

7. The Company�s comprehensive income is as follows:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Net Earnings $ 25,713 $ 25,185 $ 52,656 $ 56,169
Change in Fair Value of Derivative Financial
Instruments, Net of Tax (1) 9,461 (1,039) 9,986 (2,835)
Adjustment for Minimum Pension Liability,
Net of Tax (2) (202) (19) 222 (89)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment 25,841 (1,722) (1,214) (25,180)

Comprehensive Income $     60,813 $     22,405 $     61,650 $     28,065

(1) Net of tax (expense) benefit of $(4,214) and $442 for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and 2008, respectively. Net of tax (expense) benefit of
$(4,545) and $1,423 for the first six months of fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(2) Net of tax (expense) benefit of $58 and $54 for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and 2008, respectively. Net of tax (expense) benefit of
$(124) and $88 for the first six months of fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively.

8. On December 15, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NMC Group, Inc. (NMC) for
approximately $89.8 million in cash, including acquisition costs. NMC designs and manufactures specialized
light-weight fasteners principally for commercial aviation applications. The acquisition expands the scale of the
Company�s existing advanced materials business. NMC is included in the Advanced Materials segment.

The following summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price was based upon a preliminary valuation analysis. The Company has
not finalized the allocation of the purchase price to tangible and intangible assets and tax basis of acquired assets and
liabilities. The Company recorded goodwill of $40.7 million. The amount allocated to goodwill is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

12
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(In thousands)

As of December 15, 2008

Current assets $ 7,945
Property, plant and equipment 3,246
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Programs (15 year weighted average useful life) 39,280
Goodwill 40,726
Other assets 19

Total assets acquired 91,216

Current liabilities assumed 1,371

Net assets acquired $     89,845

On January 26, 2009, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Racal Acoustics Global Ltd.
(Racal) for approximately £119.3 million, or $166.7 million in cash, including acquisition costs. Racal develops and
manufactures high technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics segment.
The acquisition expands the scale of the Company�s existing avionics and controls business. Racal is included in the
Avionics & Controls segment.

The following summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. The allocation of the purchase price was based upon a preliminary valuation analysis. The Company has
not finalized the allocation of the purchase price to tangible and intangible assets and tax basis of acquired assets and
liabilities. The Company recorded goodwill of $89.2 million. The amount allocated to goodwill is not expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

(In thousands)

As of January 26, 2009

Current assets $ 24,847
Property, plant and equipment 3,091
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Programs (15 year weighted average useful life) 90,045
Goodwill 89,246

Total assets acquired 207,229

Liabilities assumed 40,526

Net assets acquired $     166,703

9. On November 3, 2008, the Company sold U.K.-based Muirhead Aerospace Limited and Traxsys Input Products
Limited, which were included in the Sensors & Systems segment, for approximately U.K. £40.0 million or
$63.4 million, resulting in an after-tax gain of $15.8 million. As a result, the consolidated income statement
presents Muirhead Aerospace Limited and Traxsys Input Products Limited as discontinued operations.
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The operating results of the discontinued operations for the three and six month periods ended May 1, 2009 and
May 2, 2008 consisted of the following:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Sales $ � $ 15,922 $ � $ 31,026
Income from discontinued operations before
income taxes 102 1,782 26,481 3,437
Income tax expense (benefit) (273) 544 10,650 940

Income from discontinued operations $          375 $       1,238 $     15,831 $       2,497

10. The effective income tax rate for the first six months of 2009 was 14.2% (before a $0.3 million tax expense)
compared with 22.6% (before a $6.2 million tax benefit) for the prior-year period. The $0.3 million tax expense in
the first six months of 2009 was the result of three events. The first event was a $2.0 million tax benefit for the
reduction of previously recorded withholding tax liabilities as a result of the enactment of a U.S.-Canadian tax
treaty. The second event was the recording of a $1.6 million tax expense as a result of accruing a penalty due to a
development with regard to certain foreign tax laws. The third event was a $0.7 million expense resulting from the
reversal of previously recorded tax benefits associated with the implementation of CMC�s SADI program. The
$6.2 million of tax benefits in the prior-year period was the result of three events. The first event was the
settlement of an examination of the U.S. federal income tax returns for fiscal 2003 through 2005, which resulted in
a $2.8 million reduction of previously estimated income tax liabilities. The second event was the enactment of tax
laws reducing the Canadian statutory tax rate, which resulted in a $4.1 million net reduction of deferred income tax
liabilities. The third event was the recognition of $0.7 million of additional income tax liabilities at CMC. The
effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the first six months of 2009 and 2008, as both years benefited
from various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense deductions.

In June 2005, the FASB issued FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by establishing
a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial
statements. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for how a company should recognize, derecognize, measure,
present, and disclose in its financial statements uncertain tax positions that a company has taken or expects to take on
a tax return. In addition, FIN 48 provides guidance on interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and
transition.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effective October 27, 2007. During the first six months of 2009, a
gross increase of $18.0 million of unrecognized tax benefits was recorded due to developments with regard to certain
foreign tax laws. As $17.5 million of this liability represents an acquired tax liability, the recording of the liability
resulted in an
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increase to goodwill. Further, the $17.5 million liability is specifically indemnified pursuant to a stock purchase
agreement. As this liability is specifically indemnified pursuant to a stock purchase agreement, a receivable has been
established to reflect the recoverability of the contingent tax. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that may
decrease based on the reasonably possible resolution of certain tax matters within the next 12 months is $17.5 million.
As this decrease represents an acquired tax liability, the reduction would be offset by a decrease to goodwill.

The Company recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the first six
months of 2009, a gross increase of $6.9 million of interest related to unrecognized tax benefits was recorded due to
developments with regard to certain foreign tax laws. As $6.6 million of this liability is specifically indemnified
pursuant to a stock purchase agreement, a receivable has been established to reflect the recoverability of the
contingent interest. The total amount of interest related to unrecognized tax benefits that may decrease based on the
reasonably possible resolution of certain tax matters within the next 12 months is $6.6 million. This decrease would be
offset by a reduction in a corresponding receivable.

The Company recognizes penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. During the first six
months of 2009, a gross increase of $6.9 million of penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits was recorded due to
developments with regard to certain foreign tax laws. As $5.2 million of this liability is specifically indemnified
pursuant to a stock purchase agreement, a receivable has been established to reflect the recoverability of the
contingent penalty. The total amount of penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits that may decrease based on the
reasonably possible resolution of certain tax matters within the next 12 months is $6.9 million. The $5.2 million
decrease would be offset by a reduction in a corresponding receivable. The remaining $1.7 million decrease would
reduce the period�s tax expense.

The Company and/or one of its subsidiaries files income tax returns in the U. S. federal jurisdiction and various states
and foreign jurisdictions. The Company and/or one of its subsidiaries which are no longer subject to income tax
examinations by tax authorities in its major tax jurisdictions are as follows:

Tax Jurisdiction
Years No Longer
Subject to Audit

U.S. Federal 2005 and prior
Canada 2002 and prior
France 2004 and prior
Germany 2003 and prior
United Kingdom 2003 and prior

11. As of May 1, 2009, the Company had three share-based compensation plans � an employee stock purchase plan, an
employee share-save scheme for U.K. employees, and an equity
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incentive plan. The compensation cost that has been charged against income for those plans for the first six months
of 2009 and 2008 was $3.7 million and $4.3 million, respectively.

During the first six months of 2009 and 2008, the Company issued 79,887 and 118,069 shares, respectively, under its
employee stock plans. The Company converted the ESPP to a �safe harbor� design on December 16, 2008. Under the
safe harbor design, shares are purchased by participants at 95% of the market value on the purchase date and,
therefore, compensation cost is no longer recognized for the ESPP.

The fair value of the awards under the employee stock purchase plan was estimated using a Black-Scholes pricing
model which uses the assumptions noted in the following table.

Six Months Ended
May 1,
    2009    

May 2,
    2008    

Risk-free interest rate (U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues) 3.32% 3.32 � 5.15%
Expected dividend yield � �
Expected volatility 33.8% 21.4 � 34.8%
Expected life (months) 6 6

In April 2009, the Company offered shares under the employee share-save scheme for U.K. employees. This plan
allows participants the option to purchase shares at 95% of the market price of the stock as of the beginning of the
offering period. The term of these options is three years. The share-save scheme is not a �safe-harbor� design, and,
therefore, compensation cost will be recognized on this plan.

Under the employee share-save scheme, option exercise prices are equal to the fair market value of the Company�s
common stock on the date of grant. The Company granted 164,199 options in the six-month period ended May 1,
2009. The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the six-month period ended May 1, 2009,
was $7.49 per share.

The fair value of the awards under the employee share-save scheme was estimated using a Black-Scholes pricing
model which uses the assumptions noted in the following table:

May 1,
    2009    

Risk-free interest rate (U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues) 0.58%
Expected dividend yield �
Expected volatility 50.08%
Expected life (years) 3

Under the equity incentive plan, option exercise prices are equal to the fair market value of the Company�s common
stock on the date of grant. The Company granted 399,400 options and
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349,300 options in the six month periods ended May 1, 2009 and May 2, 2008, respectively. The weighted-average
grant date fair value of options granted during the six month periods ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008, was
$15.76 per share and $25.42 per share, respectively.

The fair value of each option granted by the Company was estimated using a Black-Scholes pricing model which uses
the assumptions noted in the following table.

Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Risk-free interest rate (U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues) 1.43 � 3.12% 3.24 � 4.53%
Expected dividend yield � �
Expected volatility 36.8 � 43.1% 33.0 � 42.9%
Expected life (years) 4.5 � 9.5 2.0 � 9.5

12. The Company�s pension plans principally include a U.S. pension plan maintained by Esterline and a non-U.S. plan
maintained by CMC. Components of periodic pension cost consisted of the following:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost
Service cost $ 1,444 $ 1,753 $ 2,919 $ 3,554
Interest cost 4,568 4,272 9,143 8,661
Expected return on plan assets (3,507) (5,504) (7,016) (11,175)
Amortization of prior service cost 4 4 4 9
Amortization of actuarial loss 1,007 95 2,005 145

Net Periodic Cost $     3,516 $         620 $     7,055 $         1,194

The Company�s principal post-retirement plans include non-U.S. plans, which are non-contributory healthcare
and life insurance plans. The components of expense of these other retirement benefits consisted of the
following:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost
Service cost $ 80 $ 91 $ 162 $ 190
Interest cost 160 151 321 317
Amortization of actuarial loss (gain) (18) 3 (37) 7

Net Periodic Cost $     222 $     245 $     446 $     514
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13. The Company adopted the required portions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, �Fair Value
Measurements,� (Statement No. 157) on November 1, 2008. Statement No. 157 applies to all assets and liabilities
that are being measured and reported at fair value. Statement No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Statement No. 157 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. An asset or liability�s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The hierarchy of fair value measurements is
described below:

Level 1 � Valuations are based on quoted prices that the Company has the ability to obtain in actively traded markets
for identical assets and liabilities. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly available
in an active market or exchange traded market, a valuation of these instruments does not require a significant degree
of judgment.

Level 2 � Valuations are based on quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for which all significant
assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 � Valuations are based on model-based techniques for which some or all of the assumptions are obtained from
indirect market information that is significant to the overall fair value measurement and which require a significant
degree of management judgment.

The following table sets forth the Company�s financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value on a
recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy at May 1, 2009.

(In thousands) Level 2
Assets:
Embedded Derivatives $ 1,256
Liabilities:
Derivative Contracts $     11,139

The Company�s embedded derivatives are the result of entering into sales or purchase contracts that are denominated in
a currency other than the Company�s functional currency or the supplier�s or customer�s functional currency. The fair
value is determined by calculating the difference between quoted exchange rates at the time the contract was entered
into and the period end exchange rate. These contracts are categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

The Company�s derivative contracts consist of foreign currency exchange contracts. These derivative contracts are
over the counter and their fair value is determined using modeling techniques that include market inputs such as
interest rates, yield curves, and currency exchange rates. These contracts are categorized as Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.
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The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities,� (Statement No. 159) effective November 1, 2008. Statement No. 159 permits entities
to elect to measure eligible financial instruments at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The adoption of
Statement No. 159 had no impact on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, as no
eligible financial instruments were elected to be measured at fair value under this guidance.

14. The Company uses derivative financial instruments in the form of foreign currency forward exchange contracts
and interest rate swap contracts for the purpose of minimizing exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates on business transactions and interest rates, respectively. The Company�s policy is to execute such instruments
with banks the Company believes to be creditworthy and not to enter into derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. These derivative financial instruments do not subject the Company to undue risk as gains
and losses on these instruments generally offset gains and losses on the underlying assets, liabilities, or anticipated
transactions that are being hedged.

All derivative financial instruments are recorded at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. For a derivative that
has not been designated as an accounting hedge, the change in the fair value is recognized immediately through
earnings. For a derivative that has been designated as accounting hedge of an existing asset or liability (a fair value
hedge), the change in the fair value of both the derivative and underlying asset or liability is recognized immediately
through earnings. For a derivative designated as an accounting hedge of an anticipated transaction (a cash flow
hedge), the change in the fair value is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet in Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss (AOCL) to the extent the derivative is effective in mitigating the exposure related to the
anticipated transaction. The change in the fair value related to the ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is
immediately recognized in earnings. The amount recorded within AOCL is reclassified into earnings in the same
period during which the underlying hedged transaction affects earnings. The Company does not exclude any amounts
from the measure of effectiveness for both fair value and cash flow hedges.

The fair values of derivative instruments are presented on a gross basis as the Company does not have any derivative
contracts which are subject to master netting arrangements. The Company does not have any hedges with
credit-risk-related contingent features or that required the posting of collateral as of May 1, 2009. The cash flows from
derivative contracts are recorded in operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Foreign Currency Forward Exchange Contracts

The Company transacts business in various foreign currencies which subjects the Company�s cash flows and earnings
to exposure related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These exposures arise primarily from purchases or
sales of products and services from third parties. Foreign currency forward exchange contracts provide for the
purchase or sale of foreign currencies at specified future dates at specified exchange rates and are used to offset
changes in the fair value of certain assets or liabilities or forecasted cash flows resulting from
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transactions denominated in foreign currencies. As of May 1, 2009 and October 31, 2008, the Company had
outstanding foreign currency forward exchange contracts with notional amounts of $293.8 million and $313.4 million,
respectively. These notional values consist primarily of contracts for the European euro, British pound sterling and
Canadian dollar, and are stated in U.S. dollar equivalents at spot exchange rates at the respective dates.

Interest Rate Swaps

The Company manages its exposure to interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate
debt, which over time should moderate the costs of debt financing. When considered necessary, the Company may use
financial instruments in the form of interest rate swap to help meet this objective. At May 1, 2009, the Company does
not have any interest rate swap contracts. A $2.9 million deferred gain on terminated interest rate swap is being
amortized in proportion to the repayment of the underlying debt. The gain will be amortized through 2013.

Embedded Derivative Instruments

The Company�s embedded derivatives are the result of entering into sales or purchase contracts that are denominated in
a currency other than the Company�s functional currency or the supplier�s or customer�s functional currency.

Net Investment Hedge

In February 2006, the Company entered into a term loan for U.K. £57.0 million. The Company designated the term
loan a hedge of the investment in a certain U.K. business unit. The foreign currency gain or loss that is effective as a
hedge is reported as a component of other comprehensive income in shareholders� equity. To the extent that this hedge
is ineffective, the foreign currency gain or loss is recorded in earnings. There was no ineffectiveness in 2009.

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

Fair values of derivative instruments in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of May 1, 2009 are as follows:

(In thousands) Derivatives

Classification
Fair
Value

Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts Accrued liabilities $ 11,139
Net investment hedge Current maturities, long-term debt $ 11,553
Net investment hedge Long-term debt $ 18,023
Embedded derivative instruments Other assets $ 1,256
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The effect of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three and six months ended
May 1, 2009 is as follows:

(In thousands) Amount of Gain (Loss)
at May 1, 2009

Location of
Gain (Loss)

Three
Months
Ended

Six
Months
Ended

Fair Value Hedges
Interest rate swap contracts Interest Expense $ 161 $ 242
Embedded derivatives Sales (1,986) (1,755)

Cash Flow Hedges
Foreign currency forward
exchange contracts:
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in AOCL (effective
portion) AOCL $ 13,675 $ 14,531
Amount of gain (loss) reclassified from AOCL into income Sales (5,574) (10,999)

Net Investment Hedges
U.K. term loan AOCL $ (838) $ 2,612

During the three and six month period ended May 1, 2009, the Company recorded a $5.4 million gain and a
$3.0 million gain on foreign currency forward exchange contracts that have not been designated as an accounting
hedge. These foreign currency exchange gains are included in selling, general and administrative expense.

There was no significant impact to the Company�s earnings related to the ineffective portion of any hedging
instruments during the three and six months ended May 1, 2009. In addition, there was no significant impact to the
Company�s earnings when a hedged firm commitment no longer qualified as a fair value hedge or when a hedged
forecasted transaction no longer qualified as a cash flow hedge during the three and six months ended May 1, 2009.

Cash flow hedges are designated as fair value hedges once the underlying transaction is recorded on the balance sheet.
Amounts included in AOCL are reclassified into earnings when the hedged transaction settles. The Company expects
to reclassify approximately $6.2 million of net loss into earnings over the next 12 months. The maximum duration of a
foreign currency cash flow hedge contract at May 1, 2009, is 19 months.
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15. Segment information:
Business segment information for continuing operations includes the segments of Avionics & Controls, Sensors &
Systems and Advanced Materials.

(In thousands) Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Sales
Avionics & Controls $ 169,111 $ 147,174 $ 297,579 $ 290,082
Sensors & Systems 86,755 97,332 171,310 190,873
Advanced Materials 103,636 113,527 200,330 234,403

Total Sales $     359,502 $     358,033 $     669,219 $     715,358

Income from Continuing Operations
Avionics & Controls $ 21,685 $ 17,401 $ 36,160 $ 32,851
Sensors & Systems 9,899 10,467 20,151 22,835
Advanced Materials 14,359 19,925 24,333 35,574

Segment Earnings 45,943 47,793 80,644 91,260

Corporate expense (6,258) (9,149) (15,930) (18,463)
Other expense (2,714) (86) (7,728) (86)
Interest income 370 939 781 2,231
Interest expense (7,610) (7,272) (14,346) (15,178)
Gain on derivative financial instruments � � � 1,850

$ 29,731 $ 32,225 $ 43,421 $ 61,614

16. The acquisition of Racal was funded from cash proceeds from the sale of U.K.-based Muirhead and Traxsys and
the Company�s line of credit. Due to holding of pounds sterling to fund the acquisition during a period of foreign
exchange volatility, the Company incurred a $7.9 million foreign currency transaction loss in January 2009, which
was recorded in other expense. To facilitate the acquisition of Racal, the Company executed a $159.7 million U.S.
dollar-denominated intercompany loan with a wholly owned subsidiary, of which its functional currency is the
pound sterling. The Company was subject to foreign currency exchange risk on this intercompany loan until bank
lender approval was secured to convert the intercompany loan to an investment in subsidiary. On
February 24, 2009, lender approval was obtained. From January 30, 2009, to February 24, 2009, the effect of
foreign currency changes resulted in a foreign currency loss of $0.1 million on the intercompany loan. No further
foreign currency transaction losses or gains will be recorded because the intercompany loan was converted to an
investment in subsidiary.

17. The Company paid down £31.0 million of the £57.0 GBP million term loan during the first six months of 2008 and
terminated the interest rate swap on the U.K. pound-denominated note for a gain of $1.9 million.

Edgar Filing: STERLING CHEMICALS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 37



22

Edgar Filing: STERLING CHEMICALS INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 38



In April 2009, the Company amended the credit facility to provide for a $125.0 million term loan. The Company used
the proceeds from the loan to repay its outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and provide
enhanced liquidity. Borrowings under the U.S. Term Loan Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either: (a) the
LIBOR rate plus 2.50% or (b) the �Base Rate� (defined as the higher of Wachovia Bank, National Association�s prime
rate and the Federal funds rate plus 0.50%) plus 1.50%. The loan is accruing interest at a variable rate based on
LIBOR plus 2.5% and was 2.82% on May 1, 2009. The principal amount of the U.S. Term Loan Facility is payable
quarterly commencing on March 31, 2010, the first four payments equal to 1.25% of the outstanding balance, the
following four payments equal to 2.50%, with a final payment equal to 85.00% on March 13, 2012.

18. Construction costs are being incurred related to the Company�s construction of a 216,000 square foot
manufacturing facility under a 55-year land lease. During the first six month period of fiscal 2009, the Company
recorded $12.0 million as construction in progress along with a corresponding amount recorded as a capital lease
obligation.

19. The following schedules set forth condensed consolidating financial information as required by Rule 3-10 of
Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation S-X as of May 1, 2009, and October 31, 2008, and for the
applicable periods ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008, for (a) Esterline Technologies Corporation (the Parent);
(b) on a combined basis, the subsidiary guarantors (Guarantor Subsidiaries) of the Credit Agreement, Senior
Subordinated Notes due 2013 (Senior Subordinated Notes) and Senior Notes due 2017 (Senior Notes) which
include Advanced Input Devices, Inc., Amtech Automated Manufacturing Technology, Angus Electronics Co.,
Armtec Countermeasures Co., Armtec Countermeasures TNO Co., Armtec Defense Products Co., AVISTA,
Incorporated, BVR Technologies Co., CMC DataComm Inc., CMC Electronics Acton Inc., CMC Electronics
Aurora Inc., EA Technologies Corporation, Equipment Sales Co., Esterline Canadian Holding Corporation,
Esterline International Company, Esterline Sensors Services Americas, Inc., Esterline Technologies Holdings
Limited, Esterline Technologies Ltd. (England), H.A. Sales Co., Hauser Inc., Hytek Finishes Co., Janco
Corporation, Kirkhill-TA Co., Korry Electronics Co., Leach Holding Corporation, Leach International
Corporation, Leach International Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V. (Mexico), Leach Technology Group, Inc., Mason
Electric Co., MC Tech Co., Memtron Technologies Co., NMC Group, Inc., Norwich Aero Products, Inc., Palomar
Products, Inc., Pressure Systems, Inc., Pressure Systems International, Inc., Racal Acoustics Inc., UMM
Electronics Inc., and (c) on a combined basis, the subsidiary non-guarantors (Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries), which
include Acoustics Holdco Limited, Auxitrol S.A., BAE Systems Canada/Air TV LLC, CMC Electronics Inc.,
CMC Electronics ME Inc., Darchem Engineering Ltd., Darchem Holding Ltd., Esterline Acquisition Ltd.,
Esterline Canadian Acquisition Corporation, Esterline Canada Limited Partnership, Esterline Foreign Sales
Corporation, Esterline Input Devices Asia Ltd., Esterline Input Devices (Shanghai) Ltd., Esterline Mexico S. de
R.L. de C.V., Esterline Sensors Services Asia PTE Ltd., Esterline Technologies Acquisition Ltd., Esterline
Technologies Denmark ApS, Esterline Technologies Europe Limited, Guizhou Leach-Tianyi Aviation Electrical
Company Ltd., Leach International Asia-Pacific Ltd., Leach International Europe S.A., Leach International
Germany GmbH,
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Leach International U.K. Ltd., Leach Italia Srl., LRE Medical GmbH, Pressure Systems International Ltd., Rag
Newco Ltd., Racal Acoustics Global Ltd., Racal Acoustics Group Ltd., Racal Acoustics Holdings Limited, Racal
Acoustics Limited, TA Mfg. Ltd., UKCI Limited, Wallop Defence Systems Ltd., Wallop Industries Ltd., Weston Aero
2003, and Weston Aerospace Ltd. Muirhead Aerospace Limited (Muirhead), Norcroft Dynamics Ltd. (Norcroft), and
Traxsys Input Products Ltd. (Traxsys), were Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries as of October 31, 2008. As explained in
Note 9, Muirhead, Norcroft, and Traxsys were sold on November 3, 2008, and, accordingly, Muirhead, Norcroft, and
Traxsys were excluded from the Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet at May 1, 2009, and accounted for as a
discontinued operation in the Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations and Cash Flows for the six month
periods ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008. The Guarantor Subsidiaries are direct and indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Esterline Technologies Corporation and have fully and unconditionally, jointly and severally,
guaranteed the Credit Agreement, the Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of May 1, 2009

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,330 $ 2,440 $ 74,636 $ � $ 115,406
Accounts receivable, net 840 119,604 146,145 � 266,589
Inventories � 138,471 147,723 � 286,194
Income tax refundable � � 7,635 � 7,635
Deferred income tax benefits 22,626 80 13,726 � 36,432
Prepaid expenses (1,825) 6,057 10,804 � 15,036
Other current assets � � 55 � 55

Total Current Assets 59,971 266,652 400,724 � 727,347

Property, Plant & Equipment, Net 1,551 130,883 87,386 � 219,820
Goodwill � 251,094 439,424 � 690,518
Intangibles, Net 39 104,155 305,856 � 410,050
Debt Issuance Costs, Net 8,151 � � � 8,151
Deferred Income Tax Benefits 24,675 5,872 30,050 � 60,597
Other Assets 167 1,809 36,161                 � 38,137
Amounts Due (To) From
Subsidiaries 23,356 � � (23,356) �
Investment in Subsidiaries 1,567,432 232,289 187,743 (1,987,464) �

Total Assets $   1,685,342 $       992,754 $   1,487,344 $ (2,010,820) $   2,154,620
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(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,308 $ 26,152 $ 48,745 $ � $ 78,205
Accrued liabilities 11,207 58,997 130,870 � 201,074
Credit facilities � � 2,398 � 2,398
Current maturities of long-term debt 11,553 470 459 � 12,482
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,123 � 1,746 � 3,869
Federal and foreign income taxes (11,049) (4,827) 16,192 � 316

Total Current Liabilities 17,142 80,792 200,410 � 298,344

Long-Term Debt, Net 493,023 20,252 284 � 513,559
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 27,167 5,870 89,462 � 122,499
Pension and Post-Retirement
Obligations 22,865 31,993 20,057 � 74,915
Other Liabilities � � 48,537 � 48,537
Amounts Due To (From)
Subsidiaries 31,288 43,416 87,343 (162,047) �
Minority Interest � � 2,909                 � 2,909
Shareholders� Equity 1,093,857 810,431 1,038,342 (1,848,773) 1,093,857

Total Liabilities and Shareholders�
Equity $   1,685,342 $       992,754 $   1,487,344 $ (2,010,820) $   2,154,620
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net Sales $ � $ 201,402 $     158,361 $ (261) $ 359,502
Cost of Sales � 133,132 114,033 (261) 246,904

� 68,270 44,328 � 112,598
Expenses
Selling, general and administrative � 29,404 25,215 � 54,619
Research, development and engineering � 7,767 10,527 � 18,294

Total Expenses � 37,171 35,742 � 72,913
Other
Other expense (income) 2,664 (31) 81 � 2,714

Total Other 2,664 (31) 81 � 2,714

Operating Earnings From Continuing
Operations (2,664) 31,130 8,505 � 36,971

Interest income (5,983) (1,116) (8,769) 15,498 (370)
Interest expense 7,270 6,114 9,724 (15,498) 7,610

Other (Income) Expense, Net 1,287 4,998 955 � 7,240

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Taxes (3,951) 26,132 7,550 � 29,731
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (445) 3,409 1,352 � 4,316

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Minority Interest (3,506) 22,723 6,198 � 25,415
Minority Interest � � (77) � (77)

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations (3,506) 22,723 6,121 � 25,338
Income From Discontinued Operations,
Net of Tax � 375 �             � 375
Equity in Net Income of Consolidated
Subsidiaries 29,219 6,564 (1,001) (34,782) �

Net Income (Loss) $     25,713 $       29,662 $ 5,120 $ (34,782) $     25,713
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the six month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net Sales $ � $ 388,582 $     281,175 $ (538) $ 669,219
Cost of Sales � 258,277 196,730 (538) 454,469

� 130,305 84,445 � 214,750
Expenses
Selling, general and administrative � 61,784 52,560 � 114,344
Research, development and engineering � 15,434 20,258 � 35,692

Total Expenses � 77,218 72,818 � 150,036
Other
Other expense (income) 3,914 10,656 (6,842) � 7,728

Total Other 3,914 10,656 (6,842) � 7,728

Operating Earnings From Continuing
Operations (3,914) 42,431 18,469 � 56,986

Interest income (11,207) (2,223) (16,141) 28,790 (781)
Interest expense 13,594 11,237 18,305 (28,790) 14,346

Other (Income) Expense, Net 2,387 9,014 2,164 � 13,565

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Taxes (6,301) 33,417 16,305 � 43,421
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (888) 2,742 4,630 � 6,484

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Minority Interest (5,413) 30,675 11,675 � 36,937
Minority Interest � � (112) � (112)

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations (5,413) 30,675 11,563 � 36,825
Income From Discontinued Operations,
Net of Tax � 15,831 �             � 15,831
Equity in Net Income of Consolidated
Subsidiaries 58,069 7,843 5,345 (71,257) �

Net Income (Loss) $     52,656 $       54,349 $ 16,908 $ (71,257) $     52,656
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the six month period ended May 1, 2009.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net earnings (loss) $ 52,656 $ 54,349 $ 16,908 $ (71,257) $ 52,656
Minority interest � � 112 � 112
Depreciation & amortization � 15,125 15,930 � 31,055
Deferred income taxes (1,914) (82) (3,707) � (5,703)
Share-based compensation � 2,012 1,725 � 3,737
Gain on sale of discontinued operation � (26,481) � � (26,481)
Working capital changes, net of effect of
acquisitions Accounts receivable (635) 10,603 31,538 � 41,506
Inventories � (6,352) (12,145) � (18,497)
Prepaid expenses 1,851 (1,381) (2,615) � (2,145)
Other current assets � � 870 � 870
Accounts payable 80 (4,645) (14,935) � (19,500)
Accrued liabilities (3,589) (10,477) 2,576 � (11,490)
Federal & foreign income taxes (15,071) 5,125 662 � (9,284)
Other liabilities 6,201 (126) 1,884 � 7,959
Other, net (494) 19 (4,033) � (4,508)

39,085 37,689 34,770 (71,257) 40,287

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Purchases of capital assets (2) (12,998) (7,884) � (20,884)
Proceeds from sale of discontinued
operation, net of cash � 62,944 � � 62,944
Proceeds from sale of capital assets � 323 42 � 365
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash
acquired � (89,635) (161,186) � (250,821)

(2) (39,366) (169,028) � (208,396)
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(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Proceeds provided by stock issuance
under employee stock plans 2,121 � � � 2,121
Excess tax benefits from stock
options exercised 8 � � � 8
Debt and other issuance costs (1,304) � � � (1,304)
Net change in credit facilities � � (2,818) � (2,818)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term
debt 125,000 � � � 125,000
Repayment of long-term debt (9) (413) (309) � (731)
Net change in intercompany
financing (207,455) (17,358) 153,556 71,257 �

(81,639) (17,771) 150,429 71,257 122,276

Effect of foreign exchange rates on
cash 2 (25) 617 � 594

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (42,554) (19,473) 16,788 � (45,239)
Cash and cash equivalents � beginning
of year 80,884 21,913 57,848 � 160,645

Cash and cash equivalents �
end of year $       38,330 $       2,440 $       74,636 $ � $     115,406
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2008

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 80,884 $ 21,913 $ 57,848 $ � $ 160,645
Accounts receivable, net 205 127,583 169,718 � 297,506
Inventories � 127,216 134,757 � 261,973
Income tax refundable � 13,664 (8,097) � 5,567
Deferred income tax benefits 30,034 (1) 7,669 � 37,702
Prepaid expenses 26 4,584 8,430 � 13,040
Other current assets � � 897 � 897

Total Current Assets 111,149 294,959 371,222 � 777,330

Property, Plant & Equipment,
Net 1,821 112,782 89,859 � 204,462
Goodwill � 209,605 367,256 � 576,861
Intangibles, Net � 70,013 220,427 � 290,440
Debt Issuance Costs, Net 7,587 � � � 7,587
Deferred Income Tax Benefits 18,082 5,810 31,929 � 55,821
Other Assets 1,490 1,857 6,254                  � 9,601
Amounts Due To (From)
Subsidiaries � 62,609 � (62,609) �
Investment in Subsidiaries 1,422,684 221,267 126,657 (1,770,608) �

Total Assets $     1,562,813 $       978,902 $     1,213,604 $ (1,833,217) $     1,922,102
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(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Liabilities and Shareholders� Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 510 $ 30,077 $ 59,220 $ � $ 89,807
Accrued liabilities 14,796 68,924 126,702 � 210,422
Credit facilities � � 5,171 � 5,171
Current maturities of long-term debt 6,983 740 665 � 8,388
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,889 � � � 2,889
Federal and foreign income taxes 4,022 730 (310) � 4,442

Total Current Liabilities 29,200 100,471 191,448 � 321,119

Long-Term Debt, Net 379,493 8,408 347 � 388,248
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities 28,152 6,042 63,636 � 97,830
Pension and Post-Retirement
Obligations 8,890 32,018 28,058 � 68,966
Other Liabilities 7,774 � 9,027 � 16,801
Amounts Due To (From) Subsidiaries 82,963 � 129,217 (212,180) �
Minority Interest � � 2,797                � 2,797
Shareholders� Equity 1,026,341 831,963 789,074 (1,621,037) 1,026,341

Total Liabilities and Shareholders�
Equity $     1,562,813 $      978,902 $     1,213,604 $ (1,833,217) $     1,922,102
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the three month period ended May 2, 2008.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net Sales $ � $ 213,955 $ 150,250 $ (6,172) $     358,033
Cost of Sales �     141,943     100,875 (6,172) 236,646

� 72,012 49,375 � 121,387
Expenses
Selling, general and administrative � 29,294 28,403 � 57,697
Research, development and
engineering � 6,370 18,676 � 25,046

Total Expenses � 35,664 47,079 � 82,743
Other
Other expense (income) 90 1 (5) � 86

Total Other 90 1 (5) � 86

Operating Earnings From Continuing
Operations (90) 36,347 2,301 � 38,558

Interest income (5,196) (947) (9,912) 15,116 (939)
Interest expense 6,950 5,330 10,108 (15,116) 7,272
Gain on derivative financial
instrument � � � � �

Other Expense, Net 1,754 4,383 196 � 6,333

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Taxes (1,844) 31,964 2,105 � 32,225
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (422) 7,338 1,191 � 8,107

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Minority Interest (1,422) 24,626 914 � 24,118
Minority Interest � � (171) � (171)

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations (1,422) 24,626 743 � 23,947
Income From Discontinued
Operations, Net of Tax � � 1,238               � 1,238
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries 26,607 4,038 (693) (29,952) �
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Net Income (Loss) $     25,185 $ 28,664 $ 1,288 $ (29,952) $ 25,185
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the six month period ended May 2, 2008.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Net Sales $ � $ 415,795 $     312,388 $ (12,825) $     715,358
Cost of Sales �     280,995 210,588 (12,825) 478,758

� 134,800 101,800 � 236,600
Expenses
Selling, general and administrative � 59,640 57,485 � 117,125
Research, development and
engineering � 13,012 33,666 � 46,678

Total Expenses � 72,652 91,151 � 163,803
Other
Other (income) expense 90 1 (5) � 86

Total Other 90 1 (5) � 86

Operating Earnings From
Continuing Operations (90) 62,147 10,654 � 72,711

Interest income (11,093) (1,910) (20,967)       31,739 (2,231)
Interest expense 14,520 11,101 21,296 (31,739) 15,178
Gain on derivative financial
instrument (1,850) � � � (1,850)

Other Expense, Net 1,577 9,191 329 � 11,097

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Taxes (1,667) 52,956 10,325 � 61,614
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) (382) 9,188 (1,057) � 7,749

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations Before Minority Interest (1,285) 43,768 11,382 � 53,865
Minority Interest � � (193) � (193)

Income (Loss) From Continuing
Operations (1,285) 43,768 11,189 � 53,672
Income From Discontinued
Operations, Net of Tax � � 2,497 � 2,497
Equity in Net Income of
Consolidated Subsidiaries 57,454 10,045 (1,420) (66,079) �
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Net Income (Loss) $     56,169 $ 53,813 $ 12,266 $ (66,079) $ 56,169
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows for the six month period ended May 2, 2008.

(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net earnings (loss) $     56,169 $ 53,813 $       12,266 $ (66,079) $     56,169
Minority interest � � 193             � 193
Depreciation & amortization � 14,152 18,279 � 32,431
Deferred income taxes 203 2 (12,720) � (12,515)
Share-based compensation � 2,366 1,968 � 4,334
Working capital changes, net of effect
of acquisitions
Accounts receivable (292) 6,704 5,912 � 12,324
Inventories � (7,577) (24,160) � (31,737)
Prepaid expenses 39 (1,006) (2,630) � (3,597)
Accounts payable (306) (2,160) 5,449 � 2,983
Accrued liabilities (8,162) 180 7,948 � (34)
Federal & foreign income taxes 7,261 (1,292) (3,156) � 2,813
Other liabilities (1,657) (1,388) 289 � (2,756)
Other, net 524 (578) (1,357) � (1,411)

53,779     63,216 8,281 (66,079) 59,197

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Purchases of capital assets (338) (6,911) (14,019) � (21,268)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1 345 267 � 613
Purchase of short-term investments (12,050) � � � (12,050)

(12,387) (6,566) (13,752) � (32,705)
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(In thousands)

Parent
Guarantor
Subsidiaries

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Proceeds provided by stock issuance
under employee stock plans 3,875 � � � 3,875
Excess tax benefits from stock
options exercised 655 � � � 655
Net change in credit facilities � � (1,851) � (1,851)
Repayment of long-term debt (65,663) (565) 281 � (65,947)
Net change in intercompany
financing (26,561) (55,915) 16,397 66,079 �

(87,694) (56,480) 14,827     66,079 (63,268)

Effect of foreign exchange rates on
cash (1) (174) (492) � (667)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (46,303) (4) 8,864 � (37,443)
Cash and cash equivalents -
beginning of year 89,275 1,502 56,292 � 147,069

Cash and cash equivalents -
end of year $     42,972 $         1,498 $       65,156 $ � $     109,626
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

We operate our businesses in three segments: Avionics & Controls, Sensors & Systems and Advanced Materials.

The Avionics & Controls segment includes avionics systems, control systems, interface technologies and
communication systems capabilities. Avionics systems designs and develops cockpit systems integration and avionics
solutions for commercial and military applications. Control systems designs and manufactures technology interface
systems for military and commercial aircraft and land- and sea-based military vehicles. Interface technologies
manufactures and develops custom control panels, input systems for medical, industrial, military and gaming
industries. Communication systems designs and manufactures military audio and data products designed to operate in
severe battle environments. In addition, communication systems designs and manufactures communication control
systems with an emphasis on security and aural clarity in military applications.

The Sensors & Systems segment includes power systems and advanced sensors capabilities. Power systems develops
and manufactures electrical power switching and other related systems, principally for aerospace and defense
customers. Advanced sensors develops and manufactures high precision temperature and pressure sensors for
aerospace and defense customers.

The Advanced Materials segment includes engineered materials and defense technologies capabilities. Engineered
materials develops and manufactures thermally engineered components and high-performance elastomer products
used in a wide range of commercial aerospace and military applications. Defense technologies develops and
manufactures combustible ordnance components and electronic warfare countermeasure devices for military
customers. Sales in all segments include domestic, international, defense and commercial customers.

Our current business and strategic plan focuses on the continued development of our products principally for
aerospace and defense markets. We are concentrating our efforts to expand our capabilities in these markets and
anticipate the global needs of our customers and respond to such needs with comprehensive solutions. These efforts
focus on continuous research and new product development, acquisitions and strategic realignments of operations to
expand our capabilities as a more comprehensive supplier to our customers across our entire product offering.

On November 3, 2008, we sold Muirhead Aerospace (Muirhead) and Traxsys Input Products Limited (Traxsys) for
$63.4 million, which resulted in an after tax gain of $15.8 million. Muirhead and Traxsys were included in the
Sensors & Systems segment. The results of Muirhead and Traxsys were accounted for as discontinued operations in
the consolidated income statement.
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On December 15, 2008, we acquired NMC Group, Inc. (NMC), which designs and manufactures specialized
light-weight fasteners principally for commercial aviation applications. NMC is included in our Advanced Materials
segment.

On January 26, 2009, we acquired Racal Acoustics Global Ltd. (Racal), which develops and manufactures high
technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics segment. Racal is included in
our Avionics & Controls segment.

During the first six months of 2009, our operating results were affected by large fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates, reductions in our after-market spares sales due to reduced air traffic and our flare countermeasure
operations, operating results of which can vary significantly from quarter to quarter as the requirements from our
customers change. Additionally, on a comparative basis, the first six months of 2009 contained 26 weeks, while the
first six months of 2008 contained 27 weeks. Income from continuing operations was $36.8 million, or $1.23 per
diluted share, compared with $53.7 million, or $1.80 per diluted share, in the prior-year period.

Income from continuing operations was also impacted by a foreign currency loss of $7.9 million or $1.7 million after
tax, or $0.06 per diluted share, relating to the pound sterling-denominated funding of our acquisition of Racal in
January 2009.

Income from continuing operations for the first six months of 2009 includes a $2.0 million, or $0.07 per diluted share,
reduction of previously recorded withholding tax liabilities as a result of the enactment of a U.S.-Canadian tax treaty,
a $1.6 million, or $0.05 per diluted share, penalty due to a development with regard to certain foreign tax laws and a
$0.7 million, or $0.03 per diluted share, expense resulting from the reversal of previously recorded tax benefits
associated with CMC�s SADI program. Prior-year results include a $2.8 million, or $0.09 per diluted share, reduction
of previously estimated income tax liabilities, a $4.1 million, or $0.14 per diluted share, net reduction in deferred
income tax liabilities resulting from the enactment of tax laws reducing the Canadian statutory corporate income tax
rate, and a $0.7 million, or $0.02 per diluted share, net increase in income tax liabilities at CMC.

Income from discontinued operations was $0.53 per diluted share, compared with $0.08 per diluted share in the
prior-year period, reflecting the gain on sale of our U.K.-based Muirhead and Traxsys subsidiaries in November 2008.
Net income was $52.7 million, or $1.76 per diluted share, compared with net income of $56.2 million, or $1.88 per
diluted share, in the prior-year period.
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Results of Operations

Three Month Period Ended May 1, 2009 Compared with Three Month Period Ended May 2, 2008

Sales for the second fiscal quarter increased 0.4% when compared with the prior-year period. Sales by segment were
as follows:

(In thousands)

Incr./(Decr.)
from prior

    year period    

Three Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Avionics & Controls 14.9% $ 169,111 $ 147,174
Sensors & Systems (10.9)% 86,755 97,332
Advanced Materials (8.7)% 103,636 113,527

Total Net Sales $     359,502 $     358,033

The 14.9% increase in sales of Avionics & Controls was principally due to incremental sales from the Racal
acquisition and increased sales volumes of cockpit controls and avionics systems for military aviation, partially offset
by lower sales of cockpit controls for commercial aviation OEM and after-market customers. Stronger sales of
interface technologies devices to the gaming industry offset weakness in the medical market. Management expects
sales in the second half of the fiscal year to be impacted by continued weakness of commercial aviation, particularly
in the business jet segment of the market.

The 10.9% decrease in sales of Sensors & Systems mainly reflected the effect of exchange rates and the strong U.S.
dollar. Sales in the second fiscal quarter of 2009 reflected a weaker pound sterling and euro relative to the U.S. dollar.
The average exchange rate from the pound sterling to the U.S. dollar decreased from 1.98 in the second fiscal quarter
of 2008 to 1.44 in the second fiscal quarter of 2009. The average exchange rate from the euro to the U.S. dollar
decreased from 1.54 in the second fiscal quarter of 2008 to 1.30 in the second fiscal quarter of 2009. Additionally,
sales were impacted by lower sales of temperature sensors for business jets and certain power systems devices due to
the delay of issuance of an Airworthiness Directive by the FAA. Management expects sales in the second half of the
year to be impacted by lower sales to advanced sensors after-market customers and power systems to business jet
customers.

The 8.7% decrease in sales of Advanced Materials principally reflected the effect of exchange rates on our U.K.�based
thermally engineered component operation, lower commercial aircraft build rates, and weakened industrial
commercial demand for engineered materials. Additionally, sales at our U.S. flare countermeasure operations
decreased over the prior-year period, reflecting reduced demand, which management expects will continue in the
second half of fiscal 2009. Sales at our U.K. flare countermeasure operations were weak in the second fiscal quarter of
2009 but are expected to be strong in the second half of the year. Sales at our combustible ordnance operation were
even with the prior-year period.
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Overall, gross margin as a percentage of sales was 31.3%, compared to 33.9% in the same period a year ago.

Avionics & Controls segment gross margin was 33.1% and 36.7% for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The decrease in gross margin reflects a $4.1 million increase in the estimate to complete on certain firm
fixed-price long-term contracts for the development and manufacture of certain cockpit avionics systems.
Additionally, gross margins were impacted by a $1.6 million charge from mark-to-market accounting for embedded
derivatives arising from backlog denominated in other than the functional currency of the cockpit avionics systems
unit or its customer. While gross margin declined at our cockpit avionics systems unit, gross margin improved at our
control systems operations due to pricing leverage, strong cost control and certain reductions in the work force.
Control systems gross margin benefited from a higher mix of military versus commercial aviation sales.

Sensors & Systems segment gross margin was 32.6% and 34.7% for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The decrease in gross margin principally reflects lower sales of temperature sensors, the impact of
starting up a manufacturing facility in Mexico and higher warranty costs. In addition, gross margins were impacted by
the delay in shipping certain commercial power system devices as described above.

Advanced Materials segment gross margin was 27.4% compared to 29.5% for the same period one year ago. The
decrease in gross margin mainly reflects decreased sales of engineered materials to commercial aviation customers
resulting in a lower recovery of fixed costs. Defense systems gross margins were even with the prior-year period
reflecting strong gross margins at our combustible ordnance and chaff countermeasure operations and weak gross
margins at our flare countermeasure operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (which include corporate expenses) totaled $54.6 million, or 15.2% of
sales, and $57.7 million, or 16.1% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The decrease
in the amount of selling, general and administrative expenses was due principally to reduced incentive compensation
expense, lower professional fees, and the effect of foreign exchange rates at our non-U.S. operations.

Research, development and engineering spending was $18.3 million, or 5.1% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of
2009 compared with $25.0 million, or 7.0% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2008. The decrease in research,
development and engineering principally reflected lower spending on the development of the integrated cockpit
system for the T-6B military trainer and certain cockpit avionics systems and the A400M development, as well as
increased customer funding of certain development costs and the effect of foreign exchange rates. Fiscal 2009
research, development and engineering spending is expected to be about 5.0% of sales.

Segment earnings (operating earnings excluding corporate expenses and other income or expense) for the second
fiscal quarter of 2009 were $45.9 million, or 12.8% of sales, compared with $47.8 million, or 13.3% of sales, for the
second fiscal quarter of 2008.
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Avionics & Controls segment earnings were $21.7 million, or 12.8% of sales, in the second fiscal quarter of 2009 and
$17.4 million, or 11.8% of sales, in the second fiscal quarter of 2008, principally reflecting a strong contribution from
our Racal acquisition. Cockpit control systems earnings were even against the prior-year period. An increase in sales
and earnings from military applications offset decreased sales and earnings from commercial aviation applications. In
addition, cockpit control systems benefited from cost control and reductions in the work force. As indicated above,
our cockpit avionics systems operations were impacted by an unfavorable estimate to complete adjustment on
long-term contracts. Interface technologies operations earnings were down slightly against the prior-year period,
primarily reflecting lower earnings from a new product development with introductory pricing for a limited number of
shipments and reduced earnings from our medical business.

Sensors & Systems segment earnings were $9.9 million, or 11.4% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009
compared with $10.5 million, or 10.8% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2008. Both advanced sensors and
power systems operations earnings were slightly below the prior-year period. Advanced sensors results were favorably
impacted by strong after-market sales, which are not expected to continue at this level for the balance of the year.
Power systems operations benefited from lower research and development expenses and higher customer funding of
research and development.

Advanced Materials segment earnings were $14.4 million, or 13.9% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2009
compared with $19.9 million, or 17.6% of sales, for the second fiscal quarter of 2008, principally reflecting lower
earnings from our engineered materials and flare countermeasure operations. Engineered materials operations were
impacted by lower demand from commercial aviation and industrial commercial customers. Flare countermeasure
operations are also being impacted by lower requirements and delayed shipments due to the availability of certified
munitions carriers. Our thermally engineered material operations are benefiting from strong sales and earnings from
nuclear and petrochemical customers and cost control actions.

Interest expense for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 was $7.6 million compared with $7.3 million for the second
fiscal quarter of 2008, reflecting increased borrowings to finance the acquisition of Racal and NMC in the first fiscal
quarter of 2009.

The effective income tax rate for the second fiscal quarter of 2009 was 12.2% (before a $0.7 million tax expense)
compared with 23.0% (before a $0.7 million tax expense) for the prior-year period. The $0.7 million tax expense in
the second fiscal quarter of 2009 was related to the reduction of prior year tax benefits resulting from CMC�s
implementation of its SADI program. The $0.7 million tax expense in the second fiscal quarter of 2008 was related to
certain tax liabilities of CMC. The effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the second fiscal quarters of
2009 and 2008, as both years benefited from various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense deductions.

To the extent that sales are transacted in a currency other than the functional currency of the operating unit, we are
subject to foreign currency fluctuation risk. We use forward contracts to hedge our foreign currency exchange risk.
Also, we are subject to foreign currency gains or
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losses from embedded derivatives on backlog denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of our
operating companies or its customer. Gains and losses on forward contracts, embedded derivatives, and revaluation of
assets and liabilities denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the Company for the three-month
period ended May 1, 2009 and May 2, 2008 are as follows:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Forward foreign currency contracts � gain (loss) $ (128) $         1,572
Embedded derivatives � gain (loss) (1,986) 91
Revaluation of monetary assets/liabilities � gain (loss)         7,968 (8)

Total $ 5,854 $ 1,655
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Six Month Period Ended May 1, 2009 Compared with Six Month Period Ended May 2, 2008

Sales for the first six months decreased 6.4% when compared with the prior-year period. Sales by segment were as
follows:

(In thousands)

Incr./(Decr.)
from prior

    year period    

Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Avionics & Controls 2.6% $ 297,579 $ 290,082
Sensors & Systems (10.2)% 171,310 190,873
Advanced Materials (14.5)% 200,330 234,403

Total Net Sales $     669,219 $     715,358

The 2.6% increase in sales of Avionics & Controls was principally due to the acquisition of Racal and the decrease in
the number of weeks contained in the first six months of 2009 compared to the prior-year period, as explained above.
Avionics & Controls sales benefited from strong military demand but weak commercial aviation demand impacting
OEM and aftermarket spares sales.

The 10.2% decrease in sales of Sensors & Systems mainly reflected the effect of exchange rates at our non-U.S.
operations, lower sales of certain power systems devices, and the decrease in the number of weeks contained in the
first six month period of 2009 compared to the prior-year period. Sales in the first six months of 2009 reflected a
weaker pound sterling and euro relative to the U.S. dollar. The average exchange rate from the pound sterling to the
U.S. dollar decreased from 2.00 in the first six months of 2008 to 1.48 in the first six months of 2009. The average
exchange rate from the euro to the U.S. dollar decreased from 1.50 in the first six months of 2008 to 1.31 in the first
six months of 2009.

The 14.5% decrease in sales of Advanced Materials principally reflected lower sales of flare countermeasure devices
at our U.K. operation, decreased sales of thermally engineered components and elastomer components, and the
decrease in the number of weeks contained in the first six months of 2009 compared to the prior-year period. The
decrease in flare countermeasures sales principally related to timing of receiving orders and scheduling shipments of
our international customers. The decrease in sales of thermally engineered components reflected the weakening of the
pound sterling as described above. The decrease in sales at our engineered materials operations was principally due to
lower demand from commercial aviation customers. These decreases in sales were partially offset by increased sales
of combustible ordnance and incremental sales from the acquisition of NMC in December 2008.

Overall, gross margin as a percentage of sales was 32.1% and 33.1% for the first six months of fiscal 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Avionics & Controls segment gross margin was 34.2% and 35.7% for the first six months of 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The decrease in gross margin reflected the $4.1 million estimate to complete adjustment for certain
long-term contracts, a $1.6 million charge from mark-to-market
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accounting for embedded derivatives, as previously described above, lower after-market sales, and decreased gross
margins at our interface technologies operation. These decreases were partially offset by improved gross margins at
our cockpit control systems operation due to cost control and pricing strength.

Sensors & Systems segment gross margin was 33.9% and 36.1% for the first six months of 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The decrease in gross margin was due to lower after-market sales and certain higher margin power
distribution devices for commercial aircraft applications, partially offset by a retroactive price adjustment on certain
temperature and pressure sensors and the impact of exchange rates, as well as improved gross margin on certain power
distribution devices for defense applications.

Advanced Materials segment gross margin was 27.4% compared to 27.3% for the same period one year ago. The
increase in Advanced Materials gross margin reflected strong gross margins at our combustible ordnance and
thermally engineered components operations, partially offset by lower gross margins at our U.K. flare countermeasure
and engineered materials operations, reflecting lower sales volumes and a decreased recovery of fixed overhead
expenses.

Selling, general and administrative expenses (which include corporate expenses) totaled $114.3 million, or 17.1% of
sales, and $117.1 million, or 16.4% of sales, for the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The decrease in
selling, general and administrative expense principally reflects lower incentive compensation expense and the effect of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and partially offset by an increase in pension cost.

Research, development and engineering spending was $35.7 million, or 5.3% of sales, for the first six months of 2009
compared with $46.7 million, or 6.5% of sales, for the first six months of 2008. The decrease in research, development
and engineering principally reflected increased customer funding and governmental assistance on certain development
programs, lower spending on the integrated cockpit system for the T-6B military trainer, the A400M and 787
programs, and the effect of translating our non-U.S. units from their functional currency to the U.S. dollar as the
Canadian dollar, euro and pound sterling weakened against the U.S. dollar.

Segment earnings (operating earnings excluding corporate expenses and other income or expense) for the first six
months of 2009 totaled $80.6 million, or 12.1% of sales, compared with $91.3 million, or 12.8% of sales, for the first
six months in 2008.

Avionics & Controls segment earnings were $36.2 million, or 12.2% of sales, in the first six months of 2009 and
$32.9 million, or 11.3% of sales, in the first six months of 2008, principally reflecting the incremental earnings from
the Racal acquisition. Control systems earnings declined against the prior-year period, reflecting decreased sales of
after-market spares sales. Our avionics systems unit incurred operating losses in both the first six months of fiscal
2009 and 2008. Operating losses of our avionics systems unit in the first six months of fiscal 2009 mainly reflected
lower than expected gross margins on certain long-term contracts, partially offset by lower research, development and
engineering costs principally related to the development of the cockpit integration system for the T-6B military
trainer. During the first six months of fiscal 2008, the
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Canadian dollar strengthened against the U.S. dollar, which adversely impacted operating results, as approximately
80% of avionics systems sales are denominated in the U.S. dollar. Earnings of our interface technologies operation
were almost even with the prior-year period.

Sensors & Systems segment earnings were $20.2 million, or 11.8% of sales, for the first six months of 2009 compared
with $22.8 million, or 12.0% of sales, for the first six months of 2008. The decrease in segment earnings as a percent
of sales principally reflects lower gross margins at our temperature and pressure sensor operations and start-up costs
incurred to set up a manufacturing operation in Mexico. Lower gross margins at our power distribution operations
were substantially offset by decreased research, engineering and development due to increased governmental
assistance and customer development funding and decreased A400M program development expenses.

Advanced Materials segment earnings were $24.3 million, or 12.1% of sales, for the first six months of 2009
compared with $35.6 million, or 15.2% of sales, for the first six months of 2008, principally reflecting lower earnings
from our engineered materials, U.K. countermeasure flare, and metal finishing operations. As explained above, our
U.K. flare countermeasure unit had significant international sales and gross profit in the prior-year period, which did
not occur in the first six months of 2009. We expect our international flare countermeasure sales orders to ship later
this year. The decrease in earnings at our advanced materials operation principally reflected lower sales volumes and
gross margin due to sales mix. The decrease in earnings at our metal finishing unit resulted from decreased sales and
gross profit principally due to the effects of the strike at Boeing.

On January 26, 2009, we acquired Racal for £119.3 million or $166.7 million. Racal develops and manufactures high
technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics market segment. The
acquisition was funded with cash proceeds from the sale of U.K.-based Muirhead and Traxsys and our line of credit.
To facilitate the acquisition of Racal, we executed a $159.7 million U.S. dollar-denominated intercompany loan with a
wholly owned subsidiary, for which its functional currency is the pound sterling. Due to our holding of pounds
sterling to fund the acquisition during a period of foreign exchange volatility, we incurred a $7.9 million foreign
currency transaction loss in January 2009, which was recorded in other expense. We were subject to foreign currency
exchange risk on this intercompany loan until bank lender approval was secured to convert the intercompany loan to
an investment in subsidiary. On February 24, 2009, lender approval was obtained.

Interest expense for the first six months of 2009 was $14.3 million compared with $15.2 million for the first six
months of 2008, reflecting lower borrowings during most of the first six months of 2009.

During the first six months of 2008, we repaid £31.0 million under our pound sterling term loan and terminated our
interest rate swap, which resulted in a $1.9 million gain.

The effective income tax rate for the first six months of 2009 was 14.2% (before a $0.3 million tax benefit) compared
with 22.6% (before a $6.2 million tax benefit) for the prior-year period.
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The $0.3 million tax benefit in the first six months of 2009 was the result of three events. The first event was a
$2.0 million reduction of previously recorded withholding tax liabilities as a result of the enactment of a
U.S.-Canadian tax treaty. The second event was the recording of a $1.6 million tax expense as a result of accruing a
penalty due to a development with regard to certain foreign tax laws. The third event was a $0.7 million expense
resulting from the reversal of previously recorded tax benefits associated with the implementation of CMC�s SADI
program. The $6.2 million tax benefit in the first six months of 2008 was the result of three events. The first event was
the settlement of an examination of the U.S. federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2003 through 2005, which
resulted in a $2.8 million reduction of previously estimated income tax liabilities. The second event was the enactment
of tax laws reducing the Canadian statutory corporate income tax rate, which resulted in a $4.1 million net reduction
of deferred income tax liabilities. The third event was the recognition of $0.7 million of additional income tax
liabilities at CMC. The effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate in the first six months of 2009 and 2008, as
both years benefited from various tax credits and certain foreign interest expense deductions.

To the extent that sales are transacted in a currency other than the functional currency of the operating unit, we are
subject to foreign currency fluctuation risk. We use forward contracts to hedge our foreign currency exchange risk.
Also, we are subject to foreign currency gains or losses from embedded derivatives on backlog denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of our operating companies or its customer. Gains and losses on forward
contracts, embedded derivatives, and revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the Company for the six-month period ended May 1, 2009, and May 2, 2008, are as follows:

(In thousands) Six Months Ended
May 1,
2009

May 2,
2008

Forward foreign currency contracts � gain (loss) $ (7,967) $         3,145
Embedded derivatives � gain (loss) (1,755) 869
Revaluation of monetary assets/liabilities � gain (loss)         8,897 1,121

Total $ (825) $ 5,135

New orders for the first six months of 2009 were $676.3 million compared with $788.1 million for the same period in
2008. Orders in the first six months of 2009 include $41.0 million in backlog acquired from the Racal and NMC
acquisitions. New orders declined by $152.8 million if Racal and NMC acquired backlog is excluded. The decline in
new orders principally reflects the effect of exchange rates, the timing of receiving orders and a decrease in
commercial aviation demand. Backlog was $1.1 billion compared with $1.0 billion at the end of the prior-year period
and $1.1 billion at the end of fiscal 2008.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents at May 1, 2009, totaled $115.4 million, a decrease of $45.2 million from October 31, 2008.
Net working capital decreased to $429.0 million at May 1, 2009, from $456.2 million at October 31, 2008. Sources
and uses of cash flows from operating activities principally consist of cash received from the sale of products and cash
payments for material, labor and operating expenses. Cash flows provided by operating activities were $40.3 million
and $59.2 million in the first six months of 2009 and 2008, respectively. The decrease principally reflected lower
income from continuing operations, increased payments for income taxes, inventory for new program builds, and
incentive compensation payments, which are paid annually in the first fiscal quarter of each year. The decrease in cash
flows provided by operating activities was partially offset by increased cash receipts from customers for shipments
and advanced payments on long-term contracts.

Cash flows used by investing activities were $208.4 million and $32.7 million in the first six months of 2009 and
2008, respectively. Cash flows used by investing activities in the first six months of 2009 primarily reflected
approximately $250.8 million for the acquisitions of NMC and Racal, and $20.9 million in purchases of capital assets,
partially offset by proceeds from the sale of Muirhead and Traxsys of $62.9 million. Cash flows used by investing
activities in the prior-year period included $21.3 million in purchases of capital assets and $12.1 million in purchases
of short-term investments.

Cash flows provided by financing activities were $122.3 million in the first six months of 2009. Cash flows used by
financing activities were $63.3 million in the first six months of 2008. The increase principally reflected a
$125.0 million term loan due in 2012 to finance the Racal acquisition, and $2.7 million in repayments on our GBP
term loan. The prior-year period mainly included $65.7 million in repayments on our GBP term loan.

On December 15, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of NMC Group, Inc. (NMC) for
approximately $89.8 million in cash, including acquisition costs. The acquisition was funded from existing cash.

On January 26, 2008, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Racal Acoustics Global Ltd.
(Racal) for approximately $166.7 million in cash, including acquisition costs. Racal develops and manufactures high
technology ruggedized personal communication equipment for the defense and avionics segment. The acquisition was
funded from proceeds from the sale of Muirhead and Traxsys and our credit facility.

Capital expenditures, consisting of machinery, equipment and computers, are anticipated to be approximately
$84.0 million during fiscal 2009, including $18.5 million to be incurred under a capitalized lease obligation related to
the construction of a new facility for our Korry Electronics unit (Korry). Capital expenditures were $40.7 million in
fiscal 2008. The increase in capital expenditures reflects the construction of a new facility for Korry and a replacement
facility at our Wallop unit. Capital expenditures for the first six months of 2009 totaled $32.9 million, including $12.0
million in costs incurred under Korry�s capitalized lease obligation. Capital expenditures for the first six months of
2009 were primarily for machinery and equipment, construction in process, and enhancements to information systems.
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In April 2009, we amended the credit facility to provide for a $125.0 million term loan. The Company used the
proceeds from the loan to repay its outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and provide enhanced
liquidity. Borrowings under the U.S. Term Loan Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either: (a) the LIBOR rate plus
2.50% or (b) the �Base Rate� (defined as the higher of Wachovia Bank, National Association�s prime rate and the
Federal funds rate plus 0.50%) plus 1.50%. The loan is accruing interest at a variable rate based on LIBOR plus 2.5%
and was 2.82% on May 1, 2009. The principal amount of the U.S. Term Loan Facility is payable quarterly
commencing on March 31, 2010, the first four payments equal to 1.25% of the outstanding balance, the following four
payments equal to 2.50%, with a final payment equal to 85.00% on March 13, 2012.

Total debt at May 1, 2009, was $528.4 million and consisted of $175.0 million of Senior Notes due in 2017,
$175.0 million of Senior Subordinated Notes due in 2013, $125.0 million under our U.S. term loan, $29.6 million
under our GBP term loan, and $23.8 million of various foreign currency debt agreements and other debt agreements,
including capital lease obligations.

We believe cash on hand and funds generated from operations are adequate to service operating cash requirements and
capital expenditures through April 2010.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements. These statements relate to future events or
our future financial performance. In some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as
�anticipate,� �believe,� �continue,� �could,� �estimate,� �expect,� �intend,� �may,� �might,� �plan,� �potential,� �predict,� �should� or �will� or the
negative of such terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions and involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including the risk factors set forth in �Forward-Looking Statements�
and �Risk Factors� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2008, that may cause our
or the industry�s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. You should not place undue
reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, performance or achievements. Given
these risks and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements included or incorporated by reference into this report are made only as of the date hereof.
We do not undertake and specifically decline any obligation to update any such statements or to publicly announce the
results of any revisions to any such statements to reflect future events or developments.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures
Our principal executive and financial officers evaluated our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of May 1, 2009. Based upon that evaluation, they
concluded as of May 1, 2009, that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that information we
are required to disclose in the reports that we file under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. In addition, our
principal executive and financial officers concluded as of May 1, 2009, that our disclosure controls and procedures are
also effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange
Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

During the time period covered by this report, there were no significant changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings
From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business. We believe that
adequate reserves for these liabilities have been made and that there is no litigation pending that could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
At our annual meeting of shareholders held on March 4, 2009, the shareholders acted on the following proposals:

a) The election of the following directors for three-year terms expiring at the 2012 annual meeting:

Votes Cast
Name For Withheld

Lewis E. Burns     24,733,651     1,729,275
Robert S. Cline 26,146,038 316,888
Jerry D. Leitman 24,574,692 1,888,234

The election of the following director for a one-year term expiring at the 2010 annual meeting:

Votes Cast
Name For Withheld

Paul V. Haack     26,182,883     280,043
Current directors whose terms are continuing after the 2009 annual meeting are John F. Clearman, Robert W. Cremin,
Anthony P. Franceschini, and James J. Morris.

b) The approval of the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company�s independent registered public accounting
firm for the fiscal year ending October 30, 2009:

Votes Cast
For Against Abstained

    26,190,380     266,400         6,146
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Item 6. Exhibits

11 Schedule setting forth computation of basic and diluted earnings per
common share for the three and six month periods ended May 1, 2009, and
May 2, 2008.

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1 Certification (of Robert W. Cremin) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2 Certification (of Robert D. George) pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

ESTERLINE TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION
(Registrant)            

Dated: June 4, 2009 By: /s/ Robert D. George
Robert D. George                

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,                

Secretary and Treasurer                

(Principal Financial Officer)                
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